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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

DENNIS L. MONTGOMERY
Miami, Florida®
Plaintiff,
V.

AMERICAN CIVIL LIBERTIES FOUNDATION
ACLU

125 Broad Street, 18th Floor

New York, New York 10004

and Civil Action No.
SUSAN N. HERMAN, ESQ.
President
ACLU

125 Broad Street, 18th Floor
New York, New York 10004

and

CECILLIA D. WANG, ESQ.
ACLU

Immigrants’ Rights Project

39 Drumm Street

San Francisco, California 94111

and

DANIEL J. POCHADA, ESQ.
ACLU of Arizona

3707 North 7th Street, Suite 235
Phoenix, Arizona 85014

and

MICHAEL “MIKE” GERMAN, ESQ.
ACLU

125 Broad Street, 18th Floor

New York, New York 10004

Street address not listed for security reasons.
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and

ANDRE IVAN SEGURA, ESQ.
ACLU

125 Broad Street, 18th Floor
New York, New York 10004

and
JOSHUA BENDOR
ACLU
3707 North 7th Street, Suite 235
Phoenix, Arizona 85014

Defendants.

COMPLAINT

Plaintiff Dennis L. Montgomery, by counsel, sues the Defendants, jointly and severally,
in this civil action for Breach of Fiduciary Duty, Professional Malpractice, Common Law
Defamation Per Se, General Defamation, Defamation by Implication and Intentional Infliction of
Emotional Distress. As grounds therefore, Plaintiff alleges as follows:

l. JURISDICTION AND VENUE

1. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §
1332 under diversity of citizenship. The parties are citizens of different states and the amount in
controversy exceeds $75,000.

2. Venue is proper for Defendants pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b)(1) and 28 U.S.C.

§ 1391(e).
1. THE PARTIES
3. Dennis L. Montgomery is a natural person, an individual, a citizen of the United

States and is a citizen of Florida.
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4. Defendant American Civil Liberties Union Foundation (“ACLU”) by its own
description: “is a 501(c)(3) organization that provides legal representation free of charge to
individuals and organizations in civil rights and civil liberties cases, and educates the public
about the civil liberties implications of pending and proposed state and federal legislation,
provides analyses of pending and proposed legislation, directly lobbies legislators, and mobilizes
its members to lobby their legislators.”

5. Defendant Cecillia D. Wang, Esq., is an individual who is an attorney employed
by and working for the ACLU, admitted to the bar in the State of California and also appears Pro
Hac Vice in the State of Arizona in Melendres v. Arpaio, Civil Action No. CV-07-2513-PHX-
GMS, in the U.S. District Court for the District of Arizona.

6. Defendant Daniel Pochoda, Esqg., is an individual who is an attorney employed by
and working for the ACLU, admitted to the bar in the State of Arizona and also appears as
counsel in Melendres v. Arpaio.

7. Defendant Michael (“Mike”) German, Esq., is an individual who is an attorney
employed by and working for the ACLU, and the other Defendants, acting in concert, on
information and belief, admitted to the bars in the State of New York and the District of
Columbia who on behalf of the ACLU consulted with Dennis Montgomery, provided legal
advice to Montgomery, directed Montgomery to take action, and engaged in an attorney-client
relationship on behalf of the ACLU, along with the other individual Defendants, with Plaintiff.

8. Defendant Susan N. Herman, Esq., is the current President of the ACLU and upon
information and belief, resides in New York and is a member of the bar in the State of New
York. She acted in concert with the other Defendants herein and had full knowledge of the facts

and circumstances set forth in this Complaint, particularly since Plaintiff’s activities as a
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whistleblower involve matters of great national security interests. The ACLU represents
whistleblowers like Plaintiff, such as Edward Snowden, and has brought lawsuits that attempt to
seek redress for the illegal and unconstitutional actions of the National Security Agency (“NSA”)
and other U.S. Government intelligence agencies in spying indiscriminately on the American
people without regard to any probable cause that they are in contact with terrorists. See American
Civil Liberties Union v. Clapper, Case no. 14-42. U.S. Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit,
Decided May 7, 2015.

9. Defendant Andre lvan Segura is an individual who is an attorney employed by
and working for the ACLU, admitted to the bar in New York and also appears Pro Hac Vice as
counsel in Melendres v. Arpaio.

10. Defendant Joshua Bendor is an individual who is an attorney employed by and
working for the ACLU, is a member of the bar of Arizona and is one of the counsel for Plaintiffs
in Melendres v. Arpaio.

11.  All of the allegations and counts of this Complaint refer or relate to the tortious,
illegal conduct of each and every named Defendant, who acted individually and in concert,
jointly and severally, to severely damage Plaintiff Montgomery.

1. EACTS COMMON TO ALL COUNTS

12.  Plaintiff Montgomery sues for harm and damages in this district, Florida, and
nationwide to himself as an individual and person, including for financial harm to his individual
business reputations and his individual and business and professional opportunities, his
ownership of intellectual and other property rights, breach of fiduciary duty, the loss of legal
rights through Defendants actions and failure to act on his behalf as his counsel, and defamation.

13.  Plaintiff is in poor health and requests expeditious handling of the lawsuit.
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14.  The Plaintiff sought legal assistance from the ACLU starting in early June 2013.

15. Dennis Montgomery consulted with the ACLU and the other Defendants herein,
including but not limited to the ACLU’s lead litigation attorney, Mike German, at the ACLU’s
national headquarters, with regard to his efforts as a whistleblower having information about the
unconstitutional and illegal acts by the National Security Agency (“NSA”), the Central
Intelligence Agency (“CIA”) and other U.S. Government intelligence agencies.

16.  Trusting in an attorney-client relationship, Dennis Montgomery disclosed to the
ACLU and the other Defendants confidential information, identified legal issues of concern, and
asked for and received legal advice.

17.  The Plaintiff entrusted to the ACLU information about government abuses
potentially more egregious than those that Edward Snowden revealed.

18. But unlike Snowden, Montgomery sought and seeks to come forward legally and
through proper channels. Addressing those abuses through proper legal and governmental
channels was the primary reason for Montgomery entering into an attorney client relationship
with the ACLU and the other Defendants herein.

19.  Because the ACLU, Mike German and the other individual Defendants, acting in
concert, consulted with and gave Dennis Montgomery legal advice and an evaluation of his legal
risks and situation and asked for actions to further future legal and other actions by the ACLU on
Montgomery’s behalf, an attorney-client relationship was actually established with each and
every one of the Defendants and a duty of care and fiduciary duty was owed to Plaintiff by each
of the Defendants.

20.  The ACLU, Mike German and the other individual Defendants, acting in concert,

specifically requested that Dennis Montgomery send the ACLU even more information and
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documentation so that the ACLU could further their legal representation of Montgomery. The
ACLU, German and the other Defendants, acting in concert, gave Montgomery legal advice,
including advice they told Plaintiff would further his interests and the public in blowing the
whistle on illegal and unconstitutional acts by the NSA, CIA and other U.S. Government
agencies, as they had given and continued to give to client whistleblowers like Edward Snowden.

21.  Believing in and trusting the ACLU’s and the other Defendants legal
representation of him, Montgomery followed German’s and the other individual Defendants’,
acting in concert, legal advice by sending the additional information and documentation.

22. However, the Defendants subsequently neglected to actually help Montgomery
with the ordinary standard of care required of lawyers.

23.  Because of the Defendants’ failure to perform legal assistance for the Plaintiff to
the professional standards of care required of attorneys, the Plaintiff lost legal rights.

24.  Because of the Defendants’ failure to perform legal assistance for the Plaintiff to
the professional standards required of attorneys, the Plaintiff also continued to lose money in his
career, professional, occupation, and employment, his intellectual and other property rights, and
continued to suffer harm and damage to his reputation.

25.  But then the Defendants suddenly began attacking and defaming Dennis
Montgomery, starting in April 2015,% as part of their attacks on Sheriff Joe Arpaio (“Sheriff
Arpaio”) of Maricopa County, Arizona, his deputies, his office, and the Cold Case Posse of
Maricopa County, alleging that these persons and entities engaged in an illegal criminal

conspiracy with Dennis Montgomery.

2 The ACLU likely published attacks on Montgomery to journalists and others earlier. In
late 2014, news articles began attacking Montgomery by citing unnamed sources.
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26. Defendants’ intent was to destroy Sheriff Arpaio and Plaintiff as they were seen
as adverse to Defendants’ immigration agenda, which is based on having as many illegal aliens
remain in the United States such that they can ultimately get voter cards and vote for leftist and
Democrat political candidates, supportive of the Defendants’ leftist agendas.

27.  In addition, the Defendants’ attacks on Sheriff Arpaio, his office, deputies and the
Cold Case Posse of Maricopa County, were calculated to raise huge donations for Defendants, as
the leftwing and other supporters of the ACLU despise and oppose Sheriff Arpaio and all
persons and entitles associated with him.

28.  The ACLU and the other Defendants, acting in concert, had and continue to have
actual knowledge that their defamation and disparagement of Dennis Montgomery, later in 2015,
is false, because Dennis Montgomery had also approached and consulted with the ACLU in 2013
to help protect him against those very same smears and defamation and help him repair the
damage to his reputation as a whistleblower and to further his coming forward on behalf of the
American people as a whistleblower.

29.  The Defendants ACLU, Cecillia Wang, Daniel Pochoda, Michael German, Andre
Segura and Susan Herman, acting in concert, and their supporters, have become so motivated by
their deep-seated hatred for and opposition to Sheriff Arpaio and his office, who they claim
violated the civil rights of illegal immigrants, that they are willing to harm other clients, such as
Plaintiff, and violate their lawyerly duties in their rush to damage Sheriff Arpaio, his office, his
deputies and the Cold Case Posse of Maricopa County.

30.  Sheriff Arpaio actually enforces those laws that the ACLU is trying to overturn

and therefore the ACLU is determined to make an example out of Sheriff Arpaio and those
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persons and entities associated with him and to publicly destroy them, even if the ACLU and the
other Defendants have to betray their own former clients to do so.

31. Meanwhile, Plaintiff Montgomery had also been approached by Sheriff Arpaio
and the Maricopa County Sheriff’s Office (“MCSO”) under MCSO’s “Cold Case Posse” project
concerning the same topics as his consultation with the ACLU, as it concerned Arizona citizens
and illegal surveillance of them by the federal government.

32. Introduced through Sheriff Arpaio and the MCSO “Cold Case Posse,” the
Plaintiff met with the Attorney General of Arizona seeking action on the same topics and
concerns about which he had consulted with the ACLU and sought its legal assistance.

33. However, now the Defendants have twisted, misrepresented and falsified facts
concerning these events in public and in court pleadings in their hatred of and their determination
to harm Sheriff Arpaio and those persons and entities associated with them.

34, Importantly, and unlike the public at large, the ACLU and the other Defendants
have actual knowledge of the truth about these matters, because the Plaintiff confidentially
disclosed in a private attorney client communications the truth about highly sensitive information
regarding the U.S. Government’s actions, to the ACLU and the other Defendants.

35.  Daniel Pochoda, acting in concert with the other Defendants, while speaking for
the ACLU specifically in relation to Melendres v. Arpaio, supra, and specifically in attacking

Sheriff Arpaio, defamed Dennis Montgomery in a New York Times article June 15, 2015,

written by Ms. Fernanda Santos, Phoenix, Arizona, Bureau Chief, titled “Twists Outnumber
Judges (So Far) in Case Against Arizona Sheriff.”

“This guy [Sheriff Arpaio] hired a person [Dennis Montgomery]
previously found to be a con man,” said Dan Pochoda, senior
counsel for the American Civil Liberties Union of Arizona, which
represents the plaintiffs in the case against Sheriff Arpaio.
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(Emphasis added.)

36.  The Defendants’ defamation, disparagement and smears of the Plaintiff are far
more damaging than mere news reporting because of the public impression and public image of
the legal expertise, fame, reputation, and perceived credibility of the ACLU proclaiming that the
Plaintiff has been previously been found to be a con man and a criminal.

37.  The factual assertion that Dennis Montgomery is “a con man,” and that he has
been previously found to be a con man, is defamation per se.

38.  The underlying bases of these allegations are services Plaintiff provided to the
U.S. Government.

39.  Therefore, the Defendants’ statement is not only a false representation of criminal
conduct, but also constitutes the making of false statements to the U.S. Government which is a
crime under 18 U.S.C. § 1001 and also constitutes the violation of the False Claims Act 31
U.S.C. 88 3729 — 3733 by submitting an alleged claim for payment based upon fraud or
misrepresentation, which is also a crime.

40.  The Defendants’ statements are defamation per se on at least two grounds,
claiming commission of a criminal act and dishonesty in one’s trade or business.

41.  The original version of the article was mass-distributed in physical form in an
estimated 1.3 to 1.8 million newspapers physically distributed in Florida, nationally and
internationally on June 15, 2015, on the Internet, in Florida and elsewhere. See Exhibit A.

42. The article was revised on June 16, 2015, but the Defendants’ defamation is
identical in both versions and was also published in print form and on the Internet in Florida,

nationally, internationally, and elsewhere. See Exhibit B.
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43. Daniel Pochoda and Cecillia Wang, and the other individual Defendants acting in
concert with each other, thus attacked their own former client Dennis Montgomery in public and
in court pleadings, and thereby violated their ethical and fiduciary responsibilities of loyalty and
confidentiality.

44.  The Defendants, acting in concert, have actual knowledge that Dennis
Montgomery cannot fully defend himself against this defamation and these public disparagement
and smears because of legal restrictions on what he can disclose under the national security laws
of the United States. Therefore, the ACLU feels free to lie about Montgomery and his work with
Sheriff Arpaio and the persons and entities associated with Sheriff Arpaio, taking advantage of
Montgomery’s precarious situation.

45, Indeed, Dennis Montgomery sought to intervene in the Melendres litigation to
stop the repetition of this same defamation, disparagement and smears and to protect his
intellectual and other property interests, which Defendants, in concert, compromised and
damaged in their advocacy against Plaintiff in this case in particular.

46. Incredibly, and without legal bases, the Defendants unethically and illegally
opposed Montgomery’s efforts to intervene, including by smearing his chosen current attorneys
as much as they smear Montgomery, in opposition to the goals of their former client on behalf of
their current clients the Melendres Plaintiffs.

47.  On information and belief, Cecillia Wang, Daniel Pochoda, the ACLU and the
other ACLU individual Defendants, acting in concert with each other, distributed the same or
similar defamatory and derogatory statements to other journalists and news organizations, not

only to The New York Times.

10
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48. Furthermore, apparently starting in April 2015, Defendants representing Plaintiff
and acting under the authority of the ACLU, including but not limited to Cecillia Wang, Daniel
Pochoda, Andre I. Segura, Michael German, Joshua Bendor and Susan Herman, acting in concert
with each other, have repeatedly (as a course of conduct) threatened, incited, and sought to stir
up criminal prosecution of Dennis Montgomery along with their main targets Sheriff Joe Arpaio,
Chief Deputy Jerry Sheridan and other personnel of the Maricopa County Sheriff’s Office
(“MCSO”) as well as the Maricopa County Cold Case Posse.

49.  Threatening criminal prosecution to gain advantage in civil litigation is prohibited
by the ethical obligations of the legal profession. Seeking to orchestrate and incite criminal
prosecution of a former client is a violation of the fiduciary and other duties of loyalty and
confidentiality owed to a client.

50. In Footnote 2 on Page 9, of the Defendants’ pleading Response in Opposition to
Sheriff Arpaio and Chief Deputy Sheridan’s Motion for Recusal or Disqualification of the
Court filed by the ACLU in Melendres v. Arpaio in the U.S. District Court for the District of
Arizona, Civil Action No. CV-07-2513-PHX-GMS, attached as Exhibit C, the ACLU, acting in
concert with the individual Defendants, accused Dennis Montgomery of committing crimes.

Even more troubling, as the Court noted in a post-hearing status
conference, the evidence indicates that Dennis Montgomery
informed MCSO personnel—with Chief Deputy Sheridan’s
knowledge—that he was using a database of information
“harvested by the CIA and confiscated by him” in his
investigation, and also purported to be tracking telephone calls
between the Court, the Attorney General, the Assistant Attorney
General, and the U.S. Attorney for the District of Arizona. Tr. of
May 14, 2015 at 44:22-45:2, 45:10-16; Wang Decl., Ex. C, F. This
implicates possible violations of federal criminal laws by MCSO
personnel in the course of the MCSO-Montgomery investigation.
See, e.g., 18 U.S.C. 88 793(b)-(f) (taking or communication of

documents relating to national defense); 798 (disclosure of
classified information); 1503 (intimidation of federal court and

11
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obstruction of justice); 1509 (obstruction of court orders); 1924
(unauthorized removal of classified information); 2511
(intercepting electronic communications); 2701 (unlawful access to
stored communications).

(Emphasis added.)

51.  Asshown in the entire course of events and public statements involving the
lawsuit, Ms. Wang and Mr. Pochoda and the other ACLU attorneys and other Defendants, acting
in concert with each other, make these allegations with the intention to cause criminal
prosecution to be initiated against the Plaintiff Dennis Montgomery (as part of their efforts to
incite criminal prosecution of Sheriff Arpaio, his office, deputies and the Cold Case Posse of
Maricopa County).

52.  The Defendants also attacked Dennis Montgomery in other legal pleadings in the
case of Melendres v. Arpaio, also in violation of the fiduciary and other duties of loyalty and
confidentiality to a client.

53.  The ACLU and the other individual Defendants, acting in concert with each other,
have turned on its own former client and intensified and spread the damage caused by the
defamation, disparagement, false and misleading information and smears against this
whistleblower.

54.  Prior to filing suit, the Plaintiff, by the undersigned counsel, sent letters to the
ACLU and all of the Defendants at the ACLU demanding retraction of the defamation pursuant
to § 770.02 Florida Statutes (2012) “Notice condition precedent to action or prosecution for libel
or slander,  as well as their withdrawal as counsel for the Plaintiffs in the Melendres litigation,
given their professional misconduct and conflicts of interest.

55.  The Plaintiff incorporates by reference that demand letter sent to the ACLU and

the other Defendants, which is attached as Exhibit D.

12
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56. In response to this demand letter under Florida Statutes 8 770.02, the ACLU by
Ms. Cecillia Wang, acting in concert with the other Defendants, responded with a dishonest
rebuke, making it clear that she, the ACLU and the other Defendants, acting in concert, have no
intention of stopping its attacks on and harm to Dennis Montgomery or withdrawing as counsel
for the Plaintiffs in the Melendres case even in the face of their clear-cut professional misconduct
and conflicts of interest. See Exhibit E, attached.

57.  Asaresult, the harm is continuing and the Defendants, each and every one of
them, acting in concert and jointly and severally, have refused to correct or stop their severe
injury and damage to the Plaintiff, which damage is being compounded daily.

58.  Also, the Plaintiff alleges that the ACLU and the other individual Defendants
acting in concert with each other, actually used some of the information the Plaintiff provided
confidentially to them as a basis for the ACLU’s lawsuit Melendres v. Arpaio and perhaps other
cases. Defendants acting in concert therefore used confidential and other information he gathered
and provided by the Plaintiff.

59.  Plaintiff Montgomery is not a public figure.

60.  Plaintiff Montgomery is a private citizen and at all material times acted
individually and in business in these capacities.

61. Nevertheless, Defendants’ actions establish actual malice because the ACLU and
the other individual Defendants, acting in concert with each other, have — intentionally and
knowingly — harmed and are harming Dennis Montgomery for the purpose of advancing the
ACLU’s goals to further illegal immigration, and other related goals, as this suits its political
interests by giving illegal immigrants voting and other rights to elect leftist candidates aligned

with the Democratic Party and its other clients in the Melendres case and elsewhere.

13
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62.  The Defendants’ harm to Dennis Montgomery is not negligent or accidental but
an intentional part of its campaign to harm its main target, Sheriff Arpaio, his office, his
deputies, and the Cold Case Posse of Maricopa Country while illegally trampling upon and
destroying Plaintiff Dennis Montgomery in the process.

IV. CAUSES OF ACTION

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
Breach of Fiduciary Duty

63.  Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges each and every allegation of the foregoing
paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

64. Florida has identified the elements for a breach of fiduciary duty specifically
when involving an attorney’s breach against a client:

“As for a claim of breach of fiduciary duty, a plaintiff must allege

three elements: the existence of a fiduciary duty, a breach of that

duty, and plaintiff's damages proximately caused by the breach.

Gracey v. Eaker, 837 So.2d 348, 353 (Fla.2002).” Rocco v. Glenn,

Rasmussen, Fogarty & Hooker, P.A., 32 So0.3d at 116 n. 2.
Moscowitz v. Oldham, 48 So.3d 136 (Fla. App., 2010)

65. Dennis Montgomery sought the legal assistance of the ACLU and the other
Defendants with the legal issues he faces, including stopping prior defamation of him to silence
and discredit him as a whistleblower attempting to reveal illegal and unconstitutional conduct by
the U.S. Government, disclosing the information about misconduct as a whistleblower in a way
to bring about change pursuant to the law, and repairing the damage to his reputation from the
defamation and smears brought to silence and discredit him, as well as protecting his intellectual
and other property rights, as well as other rights.

66.  When the Plaintiff sought the legal assistance of the ACLU and the other

individual Defendants as not only professional experts as attorneys and otherwise but as experts

14
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recognized worldwide as specialists in these areas, a fiduciary duty of trust owed by the ACLU
and the other Defendants to the Plaintiff was created.

67. Instead of assisting the Plaintiff with those legal concerns, the Defendants, acting
in concert with each other, have turned around and attacked him publicly, further harming
Plaintiff’s reputation and trade and profession, as well as damaging his intellectual and other

property rights, and other rights, including by stating to The New York Times on or about June

15, 2015, via Fernando Santos, as well as in court in the Melendres case:
“This guy [Sheriff Arpaio] hired a person [Dennis Montgomery]
previously found to be a con man,” said Dan Pochoda, senior
counsel for the American Civil Liberties Union of Arizona, which
represents the plaintiffs in the case against Sheriff Arpaio.
(Emphasis added.)

68.  Asadirect conflict of interest between the Plaintiff and the Melendres Plaintiffs,
Defendants, acting in concert with each other, have harmed the Plaintiff in order to advance the
interests of the Melendres Plaintiffs who favor illegal immigration and have set out to destroy
Sheriff Arpaio, his deputies, and others who seek to enforce the laws of Arizona against them.
The Plaintiff and Melendres Plaintiffs are adverse in an actual conflict of interest.

69.  The conflict of interest of the Defendants between the Plaintiff and the Melendres
Plaintiffs accelerated into an increased conflict when the Defendants, acting in concert, and the
presiding Judge Snow injected Dennis Montgomery into the Melendres v. Arpaio case apparently
only in April 2015 and started to defame and attack him in court and publicly, as well as damage
his intellectual and other property interests and other rights.

70.  The Defendants, acting in concert, have also sought to induce criminal

prosecution against him, thereby not only failing entirely to fulfill its fiduciary duty but directly

opposing the goals for which the Plaintiff sought the ACLU’s and the other individual

15
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Defendants’ legal assistance in an established attorney-client and professional relationship. See
Exhibit C, attached.

71. Furthermore, the Defendants failed to act diligently, promptly, or effectively for
the Plaintiff, contrary to the standard of care owed by Plaintiff as a client, and thereby allowed
rights to be compromised, opportunities for solutions to pass, and continued defamation against
the Plaintiff to proliferate, as well as harm his intellectual and other property rights and other
rights.

72.  While the Plaintiff sought the ACLU’s and the other individual Defendants
assistance to further his interests and those of the nation, as early as 2013, as a result of the
Defendants actions and inactions, instead the Plaintiff has remained unemployable and destitute,
leading to the foreclosure of his house, and the cumulative effect upon his finances, profession,
career, employment, and occupation of these smears has grown worse both in direct damage but
also in the steadily increasing difficulty of now trying to rebut the lies told against him, and other
actionable acts as plead herein against the Defendants.

73.  Plaintiff has also been caused severe emotional distress, and given his fragile
health that the ACLU and the other Defendants knew about at the time Plaintiff Montgomery
first contacted the ACLU, has been placed in a condition of immediate bodily injury,
incapacitation and potential death.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
Professional Malpractice

74. Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges each and every allegation of the foregoing
paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

75. For a legal malpractice claim, Florida recognizes that the cause of action:

16
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"has three elements: (1) the attorney's employment, (2) the
attorney's neglect of a reasonable duty, and (3) the attorney's
negligence [as] the proximate cause of the client's loss." Cira v.
Dillinger, 903 So.2d 367 (Fla. 2d DCA 2005).

Rocco v. Glenn, Rasmussen, Fogarty & Hooker, P.A., 32 So.3d 111, 116 (Fla. 2d DCA 2009)
(cited and relied upon in Moscowitz v. Oldham, 48 So0.3d 136 (Fla. App., 2010)).

76.  Aspled in detail above and throughout this Complaint, the Plaintiff sought out the
ACLU’s and the other individual Defendants’ assistance with several related legal matters and
circumstances, and Mike German, acting in concert with the other Defendants, provided legal
advice including demanding documents to be used in the ACLU’s future legal activities
defending and assisting Dennis Montgomery.

77.  Aspled above, the ACLU and the other individual Defendants, acting in concert
with each other, violated the standard of care required of licensed attorneys, and failed to follow
through and assist the Plaintiff as required of attorneys and other related persons as the ACLU.

78. Instead the Defendants then turned around and attacked the Plaintiff for the
benefit of the ACLU’s other political goals and the Melendres Plaintiffs as well as the ACLU’s
and other supporters.

79. The Defendants have actively opposed the Plaintiff’s interests and defamed and
harmed him as a result of an actual conflict of interest between the Plaintiff and the Melendres
Plaintiffs, as well as other professional misconduct as pled herein.

80.  That conflict of interest was heightened when the Defendants and Judge Snow
injected Dennis Montgomery into that lawsuit, without cause or rationale other than to harm him
and Sheriff Arpaio, his office, his deputies, and the Cold Care Posse of Maricopa County

apparently as late as April 2015.

17
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81.  The Defendant ACLU and the other individual Defendants, acting in concert with
each other, failed to act diligently, promptly, or effectively for the Plaintiff and thereby allowed
Plaintiff’s rights to be lost, opportunities for solutions to pass, and continued defamation and loss
of intellectual and other property rights against the Plaintiff to proliferate and be compounded.

82. In violation of the duty of loyalty and confidentiality, the Defendants have spread
defamation, disparagement and smears about the Plaintiff and have also worked aggressively to
block the Plaintiff’s attempts to rebut the lies and smears being spread against him, as well as to
protect his intellectual and other property, advancing the goals of the Melendres Plaintiffs and
their own at the expense of the Plaintiff Dennis Montgomery, including publishing to The New
York Times on or about June 15, 2015, via Fernanda Santos:

“This guy [Sheriff Arpaio] hired a person [Dennis Montgomery]

previously found to be a con man,” said Dan Pochoda, senior

counsel for the American Civil Liberties Union of Arizona, which

represents the plaintiffs in the case against Sheriff Arpaio.
(Emphasis added.)

83.  While the Plaintiff sought the ACLU’s and the other individual Defendants’ legal
assistance to further his and the nation’s interests as early as 2013, instead, due to the
Defendants’ actions and inactions, the Plaintiff has remained unemployable and destitute,
leading to the foreclosure of his house, and the cumulative effect upon his finances, profession,
career, employment, and occupation of this defamation, disparagement and smears have grown
worse both in direct damage but also in the steadily increasing difficulty of now trying to rebut

the lies told against him, as well as Defendants™ other professional misconduct.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
Common Law Defamation “Per Se”

18
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84.  Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges each and every allegation of the foregoing
paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

85.  Defendants have also severely harmed Plaintiff’s intellectual and rights property
interests as well as other interests in the Melendres case, as set forth herein in this Complaint.

86.  As pled above in detail, the Defendants — acting on behalf of the ACLU and for
the ACLU’s clients, supporters and goals — publicly defamed the Plaintiff as having been

previously found to be a “con man,” including publishing to The New York Times on or about

June 15, 2015, via The New York Times reporter Fernanda Santos, which was published in

Florida, nationwide and internationally as a physical newspaper and also published on The New
York Times’ website on the internet:

“This guy [Sheriff Arpaio] hired a person [Dennis Montgomery]

previously found to be a con man,” said Dan Pochoda, senior

counsel for the American Civil Liberties Union of Arizona, which

represents the plaintiffs in the case against Sheriff Arpaio.
(Emphasis added.)

87.  The underlying basis of this continuing course of misconduct and illegality makes
it explicitly clear and overwhelmingly obvious that this false and misleading statement is about
Dennis Montgomery. Not only does the description of who is being referred to apply to Dennis
Montgomery and only Dennis Montgomery, but also he surrounding passages explicitly name
Dennis Montgomery explicitly in reference to his connection to Sheriff Arpaio.

88.  Defendants’ defamation of Plaintiff Montgomery was made and undertaken
negligently and/or with actual malice.

89. Defendants had knowledge of the falsity of the defamatory statements, or made

the defamatory statements with reckless disregard for the truth.
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90. Defendants falsely accused Plaintiff of fraud, crime, scams, and being previously
found to be a con artist.

91.  Astatement is per se defamatory if it falsely imputes to another conduct,
characteristics, or a condition incompatible with the proper exercise of his lawful business, trade,
profession or office; in other words, or if it tended to injure Plaintiff in his trade or profession.

92. A statement is also per se defamatory if “it imputes to another (a) a criminal
offense amounting to a felony, or (b) a presently existing venereal or other loathsome and
communicable disease, or (¢) conduct, characteristics, or a condition incompatible with the
proper exercise of his lawful business, trade, profession, or office, or (d) the other being a
woman, acts of unchastity.” Campbell v. Jacksonville Kennel Club, Inc., 66 So. 2d 495, 497 (Fla.
1953) citing Restatement, Torts, Section 570.

93. For Defamation Per Se, actual malice need not be shown because damages are
presumed. Campbell v. Jacksonville Kennel Club, Inc., 66 So. 2d 495, 497 (Fla. 1953); Wolfson
v. Kirk, 273 So. 2d 774 (Fla. Dist. Ct. App. 4th Dist. 1973).

94.  Statements are “defamatory per se,” recognized under Florida law when
statements are so powerful in their ability to hurt someone that Florida law presumes harmful as
a matter of law. Montgomery v. Knox, 23 Fla. 595, 3 So. 211, 217 (1887), such that a court will
allow damages to be awarded in these cases even if no evidence of harm has been presented.
“[The law presumes malice in their utterance,” Abraham v. Baldwin, 52 Fla. 151, 42 So. 591,
592 (1906), where the words are ... of such common notoriety established by the general
consent of men, that the courts must of necessity take judicial notice of its harmful effect.” Layne
v. Tribune Co., 108 Fla. 177, 146 So. 234, 236 (1933).

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Common Law General Defamation
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95.  Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges each and every allegation of the foregoing
paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

96.  To establish General Defamation, a plaintiff need only show: (1) publication; (2)
falsity; (3) that the defendant acted with knowledge or reckless disregard as to the falsity on a
matter concerning a public figure; (4) actual damages; and (5) the statement must be defamatory.

97.  Pleading cumulatively in the alternative to the Third Cause of Action, Plaintiff re-
alleges the allegations under the Third Cause of Action but also alleges that each of those
statements also qualify under the cumulative and alternative legal grounds of General
Defamation under Florida law.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Common Law Defamation By Implication

98.  Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges each and every allegation of the foregoing
paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

99. For Defamation by Implication: . . . [L]iterally true statements can be
defamatory where they create a false impression. This variation is known as Defamation by
Implication and has a longstanding history in defamation law.” See Jews for Jesus, Inc. v. Rapp,
997 So.2d 1098, 1106 (Fla. 2008). Defamation by Implication occurs when a publication states
facts that are literally true, but produces a defamatory meaning apparent from a plain reading of
the publication in its entirety. See Chapin v. Knight-Ridder, Inc. 993 F.3d 1087 (4th Cir. 1993).

100. Pleading cumulatively in the alternative to the Third Cause of Action, Plaintiff re-
alleges the allegations under the Third Cause of Action but also alleges that each of those
statements also qualify under the alternative and cumulative legal grounds of Defamation by

Implication under Florida law.
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SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Common Law Intentional Infliction of Emotional Distress

101. Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges each and every allegation of the foregoing
paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

102. The Defendants have actual knowledge that the Plaintiff is legally handicapped
and medically ill, and knew this as a result of their communications with the Plaintiff in 2014,
and have also learned of this repeatedly in April, May, and June of 2015.

103. The Plaintiff suffered a brain aneurysm and a related multi-infarct stroke on May
12, 2014. He suffered both a hemorrhagic stroke (caused by ruptured blood vessels that cause
brain bleeding) and an ischemic stroke (loss of blood flow). He was in the hospital for two
months, through June 2014. He has been left permanently disabled and partially paralyzed.
Plaintiff could suffer a similar or repeated event causing him to die at any time.

104. The Defendants knew about this — because the Plaintiff raised it repeatedly in his
attempts to intervene in Melendres v. Arpaio, supra — before making and thus publishing the

defamatory statements on or about June 15, 2015, to The New York Times and (on information

and belief) to others.

105. Defendants’ knowing and intentional publication of the defamatory, disparaging
and other harmful statements against the Plaintiff has foreseeably and proximately caused the
Plaintiff emotional distress and thus personal injury.

106.  Under the law intention does not require the intention to cause a particular result
but only that a defendant intended to take the action that causes the harm.

107. Here, the Defendants acted intentionally to cause harm to Dennis Montgomery

from which emotional distress was an overwhelmingly obvious and foreseeable result.
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108. Here, the Defendants acted with actual malice in wanting to harm Sheriff Arpaio
by portraying Dennis Montgomery as previously found to be a con man engaged in a criminal
conspiracy with Sheriff Arpaio, his office, his deputies, and the Cold Case Posse of Maricopa
County as well as harming his property interests and other rights.

109. Defendants’ intentional actions were committed with the knowledge that they
would cause extreme physical pain and suffering and cause severe emotional distress to the
Plaintiff, including incapacitation and possible death.

110. Defendants’ actions, each and every one of them, jointly and severely, were
willful malicious, deliberate, and were done with reckless or negligent indifference to the
likelihood that such behavior would cause severe emotional distress, and thus personal injury,
and with utter disregard for the consequences of such actions. They were intended to harm
Sheriff Arpaio, his office and his deputies, and members of the Cold Case Posse in Maricopa
County, by harming and destroying Plaintiff.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

With regard to all counts, Plaintiff demands that judgment be entered against Defendants,
each and every one of them, acting in concert, jointly and severally, for compensatory and actual
damages in excess $20 million U.S. Dollars as a direct and proximate result of the intentional,
willful, malicious or negligent actions of Defendants causing financial, reputational, emotional,
physical and professional injury to Plaintiff, damage to his intellectual and other property rights,
as well as for equitable relief as may be appropriate, reasonable attorneys fees, and such other
relief the Court may deem just and proper. Plaintiff further prays for an award of punitive
damages in excess of $90 million U.S. Dollars to punish the Defendants for their outrageous and

malicious conduct.
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JURY DEMAND

Plaintiff respectfully demands a jury trial on all issues so triable.
Dated: June 30, 2015
Respectfully submitted,

[s/ Larry Klayman

Larry Klayman, Esq.

FL Bar No. 246220

7050 W Palmetto Park Rd.
Suite 15-287

Boca Raton, FL 33433
(310) 595-0800
leklayman@gmail.com
Attorney for Plaintiff
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Twists Outnumber Judges (So Far) in
Case Against Arizona Sheriff

By FERNANDA SANTOS JUNE 15, 2015

Sheniff Joe Arpaio after an event on Tuesday celebrating lis tenure as the longest-serving sheriff in
thie history of Maricopa County in Arizona. Laura Segall for The New York Times

PHOENIX — Judge G. Murray Snow pressed Sheriff Joe Arpaio to
answer a bil of an odd question: Was the sheriffl investigating the judge

and his wife?

Judge Snow had already ruled against Sheriff Arpaio in a civil rights
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Tweet case brought by Latinos who said they had been singled out because of
their ethnicity, and the sheriff was back in Federal District Court here
Save after admitting that he had violated an order barring his deputies from

singling out Latinos they suspected of being in the country illegally.

More

But the issue at hand in late April involved whether Sheriff Arpaio and
ERET the Maricopa County sheriff’s office had hired a rogue informant in
america Seattle — a compulsive gambler known for scamming federal agencies
august 14 — to investigate whether Judge Snow and the Department of Justice
were working together to take the sheriff down.

Sheriff Arpaio testified that, yes, he
had hired the informant. And that was
only the half of it: Sheriff Arpaio also
said he had employed a private agent
to investigate Judge Snow’s wife after
the sheriff received an email from
someone claiming to have overheard Federal Judge Finds Violations of Rights by Sheriff
her mention her husband’s negative Joe Arpaio  MAY 24, 2013

views of the sheriff.

Sheriff Joe Arpaio Embraces His
Hollywood Moment  APRIL 25, 2014

Angry Judge Says Sheriff Defied Order

Both investigations led nowhere. But :
on Latinos MARCH 24, 2014

now, after Judge Snow asked pointed
guestions about the dual inquiries —
describing them as an effort “to
construct some bogus explanation to
subvert this court” — Sheriff Arpaio’s
lawyers are using the judge’s line of questioning to try to get the case
reassigned. Arguing in court documents that Judge Snow raised the
specter of judicial bias and impropriety when he asked questions
pertaining to personal matters in court, they are demanding someone
new.

“This is not about vitriolic accusations against the judge — he’s a
decent guy, a good judge,” A. Melvin McDonald, a criminal lawyer
retained by Sheriff Arpaio, said in an interview. “It's about the personal
animus he has displayed to the claim.”

It is also a sign of how Sheriff Arpaio has operated through much of his
22 years as sheriff, using his office and power to sidestep pressure to
change his approach to policing, an issue that is part of the Justice
Department’s lawsuit, filed in 2012. He had previously begun other
investigations against critics and opponents, drumming up claims of
corruption and other malfeasance against state judges, elected officials
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and the publishers of an alternative weekly, Phoenix New Times.

All of the cases eventually fell apart: Many of the accused successfully
sued the sheriff’s office, earning millions of dollars in damages, paid
with taxpayers’ money.

Judge Snow now has to decide whether to remain on Sheriff Arpaio’s
case or to let another federal judge take his place.

Regardless, Sheriff Arpaio has more legal troubles on the way: On
Thursday, Judge Roslyn O. Silver, who is overseeing a civil rights
lawsuit by the Justice Department against the sheriff and his office,
ordered a bench trial to start Aug. 10.

An appointee of President George W. Bush, Judge Snow has played

referee and arbiter in the seven-year-old civil rights case against

Sheriff Arpaio since Judge Mary Murguia recused herself in 2009.
Judge Murguia’s recusal followed complaints from the sheriff about an

appearance of conflict, given that her twin sister, Janet, was president
and chief executive of the National Council of La Raza, one of the
country’s largest Latino advocacy groups.

Judge Snow ruled against Sheriff Arpaio in May 2013, delivering what
appeared to be a decisive blow against the six-term sheriff, then 80, a
defining symbol of Arizona’s strict approach to immigration
enforcement.

But 10 months later, Sheriff Arpaio was back before him, facing stern
reproach for defying his order to stop singling out Latinos during
patrols and traffic stops.

He told Sheriff Arpaio in April that he was looking for “a pattern that
reflects a hesitancy on the sheriff’s office, on the sheriff's department
and on your part, or even a desire to subvert the orders of this court.”

One of the issues involved the failure by Sheriff Arpaio and his chief
deputy, Jerry Sheridan, to properly disseminate the judge’s instructions
to officers. Before the hearing, they admitted to this and other failings
and pledged again to stick to the judge’s corrective measures.

But the hearing went on as planned.

In court in April, Judge Snow noted that the Maricopa County sheriff’s
office, also known as M.C.S.0O., was only 29 percent in compliance with
the changes he had ordered 18 months earlier, right around the time
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the informant, Dennis Montgomery, started his investigation.

Judge Snow said he was troubled — by both the investigation and what
it had produced.

“The court wonders why, when the M.C.S.O. should have been
spending their time, money and resources in implementing its order,
they were funding a confidential informant as well as three M.C.S.O.
deputies or posse members to be in Seattle, Wash., accruing overtime,
travel and salary expenses, as well as significant technology costs,
attempting to construct some bogus conspiracy theory to discredit this
court,” Judge Snow said in court.

He took to referring to the investigation as the “Seattle Operation” and
sounded skeptical when describing the reasoning and results of Mr.
Montgomery’s work. He said Mr. Montgomery had “allegedly” used
information “harvested by the C.1.A. and confiscated by him” when he
was a government software contractor.

The materials, the judge said, included fragments of email messages
between the Justice Department and a former clerk of Judge Snow’s, as
well as snippets of phone calls Mr. Montgomery claimed to have
tracked between Judge Snow and the former attorney general, Eric H.
Holder Jr., as well as with other high-ranking Justice Department
officials.

On the stand, Deputy Sheridan said Mr. Montgomery had “pulled data
from American citizens for the C.1.A.,” an assertion that the agency has
denied.

When Judge Snow suggested that the materials provided by Mr.
Montgomery were “junk,” Deputy Sheridan and Sheriff Arpaio agreed.

But the tale of the conspiracy has nonetheless reverberated from the
glass-and-steel Sandra Day O’Connor United States Courthouse here to
the halls of the Justice Department and the Pentagon. Last month,
Judge Snow asked Michele M. lafrate, who is representing Mr. Arpaio
in the civil contempt case, to write to the C.I.A., informing it that her
client may be in possession of some of its materials.

The cache is also said to include bank account numbers and balances
for about 50,000 residents of Maricopa County, Deputy Sheridan told
Judge Snow.

Mr. Montgomery, however, could just be bluffing: His reputation,
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easily uncovered with a cursory search, includes ample evidence of

deception. He duped the federal government more than once,
according to federal officials, selling it antiterrorism technology that
proved to be a hoax.

In 2007, he falsely accused the governor of Nevada at the time, Jim
Gibbons, of having received kickbacks from Mr. Montgomery’s former
employer to help it secure secret federal defense contracts. Two years
later, Mr. Montgomery was arrested on charges that he had written $1
million in bad checks at a Las Vegas casino. He filed for personal
bankruptcy that year, over mounting gambling debts.

“This guy hired a person previously found to be a con man,” said Dan
Pochoda, senior counsel for the American Civil Liberties Union of
Arizona, which represents the plaintiffs in the case against Sheriff
Arpaio.

The sheriff’s office certified Mr. Montgomery as a confidential
informant. On the stand, Sheriff Arpaio said he did not recall how
much money Mr. Montgomery had gotten for his work.

Stephen Lemons, the Phoenix New Times columnist who first reported
the link between Mr. Montgomery and Sheriff Arpaio, said he had
relied on information from “longtime sources,” including a former
detective in the sheriff’'s Special Investigations Division, the unit that
had been handling Mr. Montgomery.

On Jan. 21, Mr. Lemons wrote about the investigation into Judge
Snow’s wife. It started, the article said, after a sympathizer wrote a
private Facebook message to Sheriff Arpaio, telling him that the judge’s
wife, an old acquaintance, had mentioned during a casual encounter at
a Mexican restaurant that the judge was out to get him.

Larry Klayman, Mr. Montgomery'’s lawyer, a well-known defender of
conservative causes, has mostly taken aim at Mr. Lemons, calling him a
“sleazy reporter” working for a “discredited, ultraleftist and pro-illegal
immigrant” publication.

But when questioned by Judge Snow in court, Sheriff Arpaio and
Deputy Sheridan confirmed what the judge had highlighted: The
investigations described in Mr. Lemons’s reporting were real.
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Case Against Arizona Sheriff

By FERNANDA SANTOS JUNE 15, 2015

Sheriff Joe Arpaio after an event on Tuesday celebrating his tenure as the longest-serving sheriff in
the history of Maricopa County in Arizona. Laura Segall for The New York Times

PHOENIX — Judge G. Murray Snow
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Judge Snow had already ruled

Save against Sheriff Arpaio in a civil rights
case brought by Latinos who said

More they had been singled out because of
their ethnicity, and the sheriff was

Mmistress back in Federal District Court here

america after admitting that he had violated

i s an order barring his deputies from
singling out Latinos they suspected of
being in the country illegally.

But the issue at hand in late April
involved whether Sheriff Arpaio and
the Maricopa County sheriff’s office
had hired a rogue informant in
Seattle — a compulsive gambler who
federal officials came to believe had
sold them bogus antiterrorist
technology — to investigate whether
Judge Snow and the Department of
Justice were working together to take
the sheriff down.

Sheriff Arpaio testified that, yes, he
had hired the informant. And that was
only the half of it: Sheriff Arpaio also
said he had employed a private agent
to investigate Judge Snow’s wife after
the sheriff received an email from
someone claiming to have overheard
her mention her husband’s negative
views of the sheriff.

Sheriff Joe Arpaio Embraces His
Hollywood Moment APRIL 25, 2014

Federal Judge Finds Violations of Rights by Sheriff
Joe Arpaio MAY 24, 2013

Angry Judge Says Sheriff Defied Order
on Latinos MARCH 24, 2014

Both investigations led nowhere. But
now, after Judge Snow asked pointed
guestions about the dual inquiries —
describing them as an effort “to
construct some bogus explanation to
subvert this court” — Sheriff Arpaio’s
lawyers are using the judge’s line of questioning to try to get the case
reassigned. Arguing in court documents that Judge Snow raised the
specter of judicial bias and impropriety when he asked questions
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pertaining to personal matters in court, they are demanding someone

new.

“This is not about vitriolic accusations against the judge — he’s a
decent guy, a good judge,” A. Melvin McDonald, a criminal lawyer
retained by Sheriff Arpaio, said in an interview. “It’s about the personal
animus he has displayed to the claim.”

It is also a sign of how Sheriff Arpaio has operated through much of his
22 years as sheriff, using his office and power to sidestep pressure to
change his approach to policing, an issue that is part of the Justice
Department’s lawsuit, filed in 2012. He had previously begun other
investigations against critics and opponents, drumming up claims of
corruption and other malfeasance against state judges, elected officials
and the publishers of an alternative weekly, Phoenix New Times.

All of the cases eventually fell apart: Many of the accused successfully
sued the sheriff’s office, earning millions of dollars in damages, paid
with taxpayers’ money.

Judge Snow now has to decide whether to remain on Sheriff Arpaio’s
case or to let another federal judge take his place.

Regardless, Sheriff Arpaio has more legal troubles on the way: On
Thursday, Judge Roslyn O. Silver, who is overseeing a civil rights
lawsuit by the Justice Department against the sheriff and his office,
ordered a bench trial to start Aug. 10.

An appointee of President George W. Bush, Judge Snow has played

referee and arbiter in the seven-year-old civil rights case against

Sheriff Arpaio since Judge Mary Murguia recused herself in 2009.
Judge Murguia’s recusal followed complaints from the sheriff about an

appearance of conflict, given that her twin sister, Janet, was president
and chief executive of the National Council of La Raza, one of the
country’s largest Latino advocacy groups.

Judge Snow ruled against Sheriff
Arpaio in May 2013, delivering what
appeared to be a decisive blow
against the six-term sheriff, then 80,
a defining symbol of Arizona’s strict
approach to immigration
enforcement.
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But 10 months later, Sheriff Arpaio

Prototype shown with options.
was back before him, facing stern i

L X Y 03) TOYOTA
reproach for defying his order to stop expLORE CaMRY @ D oy b
singling out Latinos during patrols
and traffic stops.

He told Sheriff Arpaio in April that he was looking for “a pattern that
reflects a hesitancy on the sheriff’s office, on the sheriff's department
and on your part, or even a desire to subvert the orders of this court.”

One of the issues involved the failure by Sheriff Arpaio and his chief
deputy, Jerry Sheridan, to properly disseminate the judge’s instructions
to officers. Before the hearing, they admitted to this and other failings
and pledged again to stick to the judge’s corrective measures.

But the hearing went on as planned.

In court in April, Judge Snow said that the Maricopa County sheriff's
office was only 29 percent in compliance with the changes he had
ordered 18 months earlier, right around the time the informant,
Dennis Montgomery, started his investigation.

Judge Snow said he was troubled — by both the investigation and what
it had produced.

“The court wonders why, when the M.C.S.0O. should have been
spending their time, money and resources in implementing its order,
they were funding a confidential informant as well as three M.C.S.O.
deputies or posse members to be in Seattle, Wash., accruing overtime,
travel and salary expenses, as well as significant technology costs,
attempting to construct some bogus conspiracy theory to discredit this
court,” Judge Snow said in court, referring to the sheriff’s office.

He took to referring to the investigation as the “Seattle operation” and
sounded skeptical when describing the reasoning and results of Mr.
Montgomery’s work. He said Mr. Montgomery had “allegedly” used
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information “harvested by the C.1.A. and confiscated by him” when he

was a government software contractor.

The materials, the judge said, included fragments of email messages
between the Justice Department and a former clerk of Judge Snow’s, as
well as snippets of phone calls Mr. Montgomery claimed to have
tracked between Judge Snow and the former attorney general, Eric H.
Holder Jr., as well as with other high-ranking Justice Department
officials.

On the stand, Deputy Sheridan said Mr. Montgomery had “pulled data
from American citizens for the C.1.A.,” an assertion that the agency has
denied.

When Judge Snow suggested that the materials provided by Mr.
Montgomery were “junk,” Deputy Sheridan and Sheriff Arpaio agreed.

But the tale of the conspiracy has nonetheless reverberated from the
glass-and-steel Sandra Day O’Connor United States Courthouse here to
the halls of the Justice Department and the Pentagon. Last month,
Judge Snow asked Michele M. lafrate, who is representing Sheriff
Arpaio in the civil contempt case, to write to the C.I.A., informing it
that her client may be in possession of some of its materials.

The cache is also said to include bank ELSEWHERE ON NYTIMES.COM

account numbers and balances for
about 50,000 residents of Maricopa
County, Deputy Sheridan told Judge
Snow.

Mr. Montgomery, however, could just

be bluffing: His reputation, easily A Thi rsty Colorado Is
uncovered with a cursory search, Battling Over Who Owns
includes ample allegations of Raindro PS

. . . = Ex-A.l.G. Chief Wins Bailout Suit, but Gets No
deception. Federal officials came to Damages

believe that he had sold antiterrorism =In A.l.G. Case, Surprise Ruling That Could End
technology that proved to be a hoax. Al Bailouts

He has denied wrongdoing in a

lawsuit.

In 2007, he falsely accused the
governor of Nevada at the time, Jim
Gibbons, of having received kickbacks
from Mr. Montgomery’s former
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employer to help it secure secret

federal defense contracts. Two years
later, Mr. Montgomery was arrested
on charges that he had written $1
million in bad checks at a Las Vegas
casino. A court hearing is scheduled
for Aug. 12. He filed for personal
bankruptcy that year, over mounting
gambling debts.

“This guy hired a person previously found to be a con man,” said Dan
Pochoda, senior counsel for the American Civil Liberties Union of
Arizona, which represents the plaintiffs in the case against Sheriff
Arpaio.

The sheriff’s office certified Mr. Montgomery as a confidential
informant. On the stand, Sheriff Arpaio said he did not recall how
much money Mr. Montgomery had gotten for his work.

Stephen Lemons, the Phoenix New Times columnist who first reported
the link between Mr. Montgomery and Sheriff Arpaio, said he had
relied on information from “longtime sources,” including a former
detective in the sheriff’'s Special Investigations Division, the unit that
had been handling Mr. Montgomery.

On Jan. 21, Mr. Lemons wrote about the investigation into Judge
Snow’s wife. It started, the article said, after a sympathizer wrote a
private Facebook message to Sheriff Arpaio, telling him that the judge’s
wife, an old acquaintance, had mentioned during a casual encounter at
a Mexican restaurant that the judge was out to get him.

Larry Klayman, Mr. Montgomery'’s lawyer, a well-known defender of
conservative causes, has mostly taken aim at Mr. Lemons, calling him a
“sleazy reporter” working for a “discredited, ultraleftist and pro-illegal
immigrant” publication.

But when questioned by Judge Snow in court, Sheriff Arpaio and
Deputy Sheridan confirmed what the judge had highlighted: The
investigations described in Mr. Lemons’s reporting were real.

A version of this article appears in print on June 16, 2015, on page A13 of the New York edition with
the headline: A Sheriff, an Informant, and a Judge on the Spot.
Order Reprints | Today's Paper | Subscribe
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AMERICAN CIVIL LIBERTIES UNION

Via Facsimile and U.S. Mail

June 25, 2015

Larry Klayman
Freedom Watch, Inc.
2020 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W.
Suite 345
b romasion™™*  Washington, DC 20006
CALIFORNIA QFFICE Fax: (310) 275-4963
39 DRUMM STREETY

SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94111
1/£15.343.0796 Dear Mr. Klayman:
F/415.395.0960
CWANGQACLY,0REG 5 R s
T am in receipt of your letter of June 22, 2015 and am responding on

NEW YORK ofFICE behalf of the American Civil Liberties Union Foundation and the ACLU

125 RROAD STYREET, 1897TH FL. = N u . q q
NEw vork, NY 10004-2¢00  Foundation of Arizona. We disagree with the factual and legal claims in your

WWW.ACLU.ORG letter and see no reason to take any further action.

Sincerely,

Cecillia Wang

cc! Daniel Pochoda
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FREEDOM WATCH

www.FreedomWatchUSA.org

World Neadquarters (70 Pemmsylvanun Avensie, N W, Suste 345, Washngroe, DO 20006-1K11 (310) $95-0800 Seklnyman'a gl com

Via Mail and Facsimile
June 22, 2015

Mr. Daniel J. Pochoda, Esq.
ACLU Foundation of Arizona
3707 North 7th Street, Suite 235
Phoenix, Arizona 85014
Facsimile: (602) 650-1376

Ms. Cecillia D. Wang, Esq.

Immigrants’ Rights Project

American Civil Liberties Union Foundation
39 Drumm Street

San Francisco, California 94111

Facsimile: (415) 395-0950

Mr. Mike German, Esq.

American Civil Liberties Union Foundation
125 Broad Street, 18th Floor

New York, New York 10004

Facsimile: (212) 549-2654

Ms. Susan Herman

President

American Civil Liberties Union Foundation
125 Broad Street, 18th Floor

New York, New York 10004

Facsimile: (212) 549-2654

Re: Demand to Immediately Withdraw As Counsel And to Mitigate Defamation of Dennis
Montgomery

Dear Ladies and Gentlemen:

I am writing as general legal counsel for Mr. Dennis Montgomery, who is the subject of
unethical, illegal attacks by you and your organization in legal pleadings in the case of
Melendres v. Arpaio in the U.S. District Court for the District of Arizona (CV-07-2513-PHX-
GMS) and a New York Times article of June 15, 2015, written by Ms. Fernanda Santos,
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Phoenix. Arizona, Bureau Chief, titled “Twists Outnumber Judges (So Far) in Case Against
Arizona Sheriff.”

As a result of attacking its own former client Dennis Montgomery, and thereby violating
its ethical responsibilities of loyalty and confidentiality, the American Civil Liberties Union
Foundation (*ACLU™) must now immediately withdraw from representing the Melendres v.
Arpaio (CV-07-2513-PHX-GMS) Plaintiffs. The ACLU’s conflict of interest has matured into
an even more egregious conflict as a result of actions by you, the ACLU and the Honorable G.
Murray Snow. The Defendants Sheriff Joe Arpaio and Chief Deputy Sheridan objected to the
expansion of the case.

The case of Melendres v. Arpaio was concluded on the merits in October 2013, and is
now in an ongoing contempt phase. Its scope is precisely defined by its final order entered in
2013. Yet the ACLU has now added political exploitation to its efforts to encourage widespread
violations of the Immigration and Naturalization Act (INA). In the process of expanding this
case, the ACLU is now attacking and harming its own prior client Dennis Montgomery.

Attorneys for the ACLU appearing in the State of Arizona include Mr. Daniel Pochoda,
Cecellia Wang, Andre 1. Segura, and Joshua Bendor. These attorneys have repeatedly and
flagrantly threatened criminal prosecution of Dennis Montgomery, Sheriff Joe Arpaio, Chief
Deputy Jerry Sheridan and other personnel of the Maricopa County Sheriff’s Office (MCSO).
Threatening criminal prosecution to gain advantage in a civil litigation is prohibited by the
ethical and other obligations of the legal profession.

According to a warning published by the Arizona State Bar in Arizona Attorney, in its
July/August 2009 edition by David D. Dodge. former Chair of the Disciplinary Commission of
the Arizona Supreme Court, the prohibition against threats of criminal prosecution under
Arizona’s old Disciplinary Rule 7-105(a) remains in force in Arizona even though no longer
explicitly stated in Arizona’s new adoption of the ABA Model Rules of Professional Conduct. '

Furthermore, former disciplinary Chair Dodge of the Arizona State Bar warns about
threatening criminal prosecution in civil litigation: “What has been overlooked is that knowingly
obtaining or seeking to obtain “property” by means of threatening to bring criminal charges
against anyone is considered to be extortion, a Class 4 felony in Arizona.3 And engaging in
extortionate acts by lawyers is generally discouraged here and elsewhere.” /d.

Also, as you know, Dennis Montgomery consulted with the ACLU in 2013 and 2014
about his legal circumstances, including with the head litigation attorney to the ACLU in
Washington, D.C., Mike German. Montgomery disclosed confidential attorney client
information and documents in anticipation of representation and actually received substantive
legal advice from the ACLU, prior to meeting with the Attorney General of Arizona with the
assistance of Sheriff Joe Arpaio on exactly the same topics as his consultation with the ACLU.

: http://www.myazbar.org/AZAttorney/PDF_Articles/0709ethics.pdf
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With the ACLU, Dennis Montgomery consulted in furtherance of establishing full legal
representation concerning these topics.

During these meetings, Montgomery disclosed confidential information and documents,
identified legal issues of concern.” and asked for legal advice on many issues in his
circumstances. Mike German requested that Montgomery send and provide additional
information and documents for the purpose of the ACLU providing future legal representation
that Mike German recommended that the ACLU undertake.’ The ACLU and Montgomery were
engaged in confidential discussions which constituted an attorney-client relationship and work
product in anticipation of full representation.

Because Mike German and others actually gave Dennis Montgomery legal advice and an
evaluation of his legal risks of his situation and asked for more information and documents to
further future legal actions by the ACLU on Montgomery’s behalf, an attorney-client
relationship was actually established. Moreover, consultation in contemplation of a formal
attorney-client relationship also triggers ethical, fiduciary and professional responsibilities.

Furthermore, just recently Mr. Daniel Pochoda on behalf of the ACLU made defamatory
statements published in that article concerning Dennis Montgomery, along with similar
statements made elsewhere by Cecellia Wang and other ACLU attorneys. This letter is to place
you on notice pursuant to § 770.02 Florida Statutes (2012) “Notice condition precedent to action
or prosecution for libel or slander” that you have published statements concerning our client
Dennis Montgomery which constitute defamation per se, general defamation and defamation by
inference (hereafter “defamatory statements™).

You are now on notice that your defamation caused, and is continuing to cause severe
damage to Dennis Montgomery personally and in his trade and profession, for which you may be
held to account legally. Pursuant to Florida Statutes § 770.02, litigation may be initiated no
sooner than five (5) days from your receipt of this letter.

You are also hereby put on notice to immediately take any and all actions to try to
mitigate the damage from these false statements, and also to preserve all of your notes and
electronic recordings and other documents and things that refer or relate to your article of today
as they will be subpoenaed, or subject to discovery should Mr. Montgomery decide to file suit
against you, the ACLU, and its attorneys.

: Identifying legal issues can highlight and pinpoint the strength and weaknesses of a
client’s legal situation and risks. Thus, when seeking legal advice from an attorney the
questions posed by a client can be as potentially risky if misused as the answers from the
attorney. The issues identified can assist a legal opponent in targeting the client.

: General references are required here to protect the substance of the attorney-client
discussions and legal advice given to Montgomery from the ACLU.
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First, Mr. Daniel Pochoda’s statement in the article about Dennis Montgomery in The
New York Times (NYT) article is libelous. Mr. Pochoda is quoted in the NYT stating that:

“This guy hired a person previously found to be a con man,” said
Dan Pochoda, senior counsel for the American Civil Liberties
Union of Arizona, which represents the plaintiffs in the case
against Sheriff Arpaio.

Clearly, the false factual assertion that Dennis Montgomery is a con-man, and that he has
been previously confirmed to be a con man, is defamation per se. The ACLU is claiming that
Montgomery committed fraud in business transactions. This is a public statement of criminal
conduct, including making false statements to the government under 18 U.S.C. § 1001 and
violating the False Claims Act 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729 — 3733 by submitting a claim for payment
based upon fraud or misrepresentation. Therefore, the ACLU’s statements are defamation per se
on at least two grounds, claiming commission of a criminal act and dishonesty in one’s trade or
business.

Because the ACLU previously legally consulted with Montgomery, the ACLU has actual
knowledge that any and all such statements are false. One of several topics that Montgomery
sought the ACLU’s help about was Montgomery being lied about on exactly these topics in
exactly these ways. Montgomery sought legal advice about the campaign to preemptively
discredit him and silence him as a bona fide whistleblower concerning misconduct by the
government. That discussion informed the ACLU of the actual falsehood of those smears, in
detail, backed up with documentation.

Furthermore, the ACLU has knowledge that Montgomery’s involvement with the
Attorney General of Arizona and the Maricopa County Sheriff”s Office was not about Judge G.
Murray Snow or the case of Melendres v. Arpaio.® Thus, the ACLU has knowledge that Daniel
Pochoda’s statements to the New York Times are false. Knowledge of the falsehood of the
statements establishes actual malice under the law, even though Mr. Montgomery is not a public
figure.

s Ironically, the ACLU’s dishonest and unconstitutional illegal practices are exemplified

by its now disclosed surveillance of Congressional offices by cookies embedded in email
messages. “Ironically. the ACLU actually puts surveillance software into its emails campaigning
against government surveillance,” reports Patrick Howley, “Exclusive: ACLU Uses Tracking
Software To Monitor Capitol Hill Staffers,” Daily Caller, June 15, 2015, accessible at:
http://dailycaller.com/2015/06/15/exclusive-aclu-uses-tracking-software-to-monitor-capitol-hill-
staffers/#ixzz3dLHGXTj4 *“The nonprofit civil liberties group uses a software system called
*Capwiz’ to insert cookies onto the computers of Capitol Hill staffers who click on links in the
emails, multiple Capitol Hill offices recently discovered.” /d. Hypocritically, the ACLU falsely
claims to be the protector of civil liberties and privacy rights as demonstrated by its lawsuit
against the National Security Agency and James Clapper.
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Moreover, the ACLU has knowledge that Dennis Montgomery cannot legally respond to
these smears and defamation without the risk of breaking the law concerning classified
information. He sought the ACLU’s help with this issue. Thus, the ACLU has knowledge that
Mr. Montgomery is unable to answer in detail about the defamation by the ACLU, from whom
he sought legal help. This also constitutes actual malice.

Mr. Pochoda, Ms. Wang and other ACLU attorneys are thus working against Mr.
Montgomery’s interests even out of court.

Furthermore, Mr. Pochoda’s and Ms. Wang’s attacks upon Mr. Montgomery are a
violation of the Daniel Pochoda’s and Cecellia Wang's ethical, fiduciary and professional
responsibilities toward him of loyalty and confidentiality.’

Meanwhile, and most egregiously, the ACLU, by its attorneys Cecellia Wang Daniel
Pochoda, Andre 1. Segura, and Joshua Bendor, further attacked Dennis Montgomery in the
Response in Opposition to Sheriff Arpaio and Chief Deputy Sheridan’s Motion for Recusal
or Disqualification of the Court (“Opposition™) filed by the ACLU in Melendres v. Arpaio in
the U.S. District Court for the District of Arizona.

In Footnote 2 on Page 9, the ACLU accused Dennis Montgomery of committing crimes.
In this passage, Cecellia Wang and Daniel Pochoda are clearly working to induce criminal
indictments and prosecution against their own client Dennis Montgomery.*

Thus, in violation of Ms. Wang's and Mr. Pochoda’s ethical, fiduciary and professional
responsibilities, they and other ACLU attorneys now seek to cause the indictment and
prosecution of Dennis Montgomery, a client who came to the ACLU seeking legal assistance
concerning exactly the same topics.

Moreover, Daniel Pochoda, Cecellia Wang and the rest of the ACLU have knowledge of
the true facts as a result of those prior confidential attorney-client consultations that the
allegations are completely false. The ACLU wrote and advocated in its recent Opposition:

. Sheriff Arpaio’s attorney filed a motion asking the Honorable G. Murray Snow to

exclude these topics from Melendres v. Arpaio. Over Arpaio’s objection, Judge Snow ruled that
the topics are material. Therefore, the ACLU is now adverse to someone who sought legal help
from the ACLU on topics officially ruled to be material to that case. The conflict and its
materiality were insisted upon by the Plaintiffs and Judge Snow. The conflict of interest became
severe and actual in April 2015 when Judge Snow refused Arpaio’s motion to exclude the topics
from the litigation and ruled that the issues are material to the on-going case.

¥ Ms. Wang and Mr. Pochoda and other ACLU attorneys make these allegations with the
intention that criminal prosecution be initiated. Judge Snow, at the ACLU’s urging, ordered that
the U.S. Attorney monitor the case. The ACLU traditionally ought to be concerned about
blurring lines between the judicial and executive branches.
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Even more troubling, as the Court noted in a post-hearing status
conference, the evidence indicates that Dennis Montgomery
informed MCSO personnel—with Chief Deputy Sheridan’s
knowledge—that he was using a database of information
“harvested by the CIA and confiscated by him™ in his
investigation, and also purported to be tracking telephone calls
between the Court, the Attorney General, the Assistant Attorney
General, and the U.S. Attorney for the District of Arizona. Tr. of
May 14, 2015 at 44:22-45:2, 45:10-16: Wang Decl., Ex. C, F. This
implicates possible violations of federal criminal laws by MCSO
personnel in the course of the MCSO-Montgomery investigation.
See, e.g., 18 US.C. §§ 793(b)-(f) (taking or communication of
documents relating to national defense): 798 (disclosure of
classified information); 1503 (intimidation of federal court and
obstruction of justice); 1509 (obstruction of court orders): 1924
(unauthorized removal of classified information); 2511
(intercepting electronic communications): 2701 (unlawful access to
stored communications).

(Emphasis added.)

This discussion concerning the “MCSO-Montgomery investigation™ clearly implicates
Montgomery in the “MCSO-Montgomery investigation.” Of course under the duty of loyalty and
confidentiality, this attack is a violation even if the statement is true.

To make matters worse, in her affidavit attached to the ACLU's Opposition, Cecellia
Wang sponsors, promotes and endorses an article entitled “Joe Arpaio’s Investigating Federal
Judge G. Murray Snow, DOJ, Sources Say, and Using a Seattle Scammer To Do It.” from The
Phoenix New Times trashing Dennis Montgomery in Paragraph 3 on Page 1.

On Pages 8 to 9 of the pleading, the ACLU by Ms. Wang and Mr. Pochoda further
attacked Dennis Montgomery, including by promoting. drawing attention to, and relying upon
disreputable and false blog postings that further defame him.”

The Phoenix New Times article that the Court introduced as an
exhibit indicated that the MCSO-Montgomery investigation was
aimed at developing a conspiracy theory to discredit the Court
during that same time period (October 2013 through April 2015) in
which the movants had expressed defiance of the Court’s
Supplemental Permanent Injunction, in which there were numerous
instances of noncompliance with the Court’s orders, and leading up

A newspaper article is of course normally inadmissible hearsay.
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to the April evidentiary hearing on contempt charges and remedies.
Documents later produced by the Defendants support the
newspaper account that—contrary to the testimony of Arpaio and
Sheridan—the MCSO-Montgomery investigation targeted the
Court. Wang Decl., Ex. B, F. The documents also reveal that
MCSO personnel continued to press Dennis Montgomery for
results up until the eve of the contempt hearing, even though they
had already concluded that he was not credible. Wang Decl., Ex.
C, D, E. The evidence thus suggested that the MCSO-Montgomery
investigation might be an attempt to undermine the Court’s
authority rather than comply with its lawful orders.

Furthermore, attorneys Ms. Wang, Mr. Pochoda, Mr. Segura and Mr. Bendor have also
worked against the interests of Dennis Montgomery in other court proceedings, pleadings and
hearings. Mr. Montgomery sought to intervene in the litigation to stop the repetition of those
very same smears and defamation in the Melendres litigation which he previously sought the
ACLU’s legal help and representation to refute. However, the ACLU attorneys opposed
Montgomery’s efforts to intervene, including by smearing his chosen current attorneys as much
as they smear Montgomery. Therefore, the legal actions in court by those ACLU attorneys and
the ACLU also violate those attorney’s ethical, fiduciary and professional responsibilities.

Ms. Wang, Mr. Pochoda, Mr. Segura and Mr. Bendor have thus violated the Arizona
Rules of Professional Conduct, including but not limited to ER 1.6, ER 1.7 and ER 1.9, such as:

(a) A lawyer who has formerly represented a client in a matter
shall not thereafter represent another person in the same or a
substantially related matter in which that person's interests are
materially adverse to the interests of the former client unless the
former client gives informed consent, confirmed in writing.

(b) A lawyer shall not knowingly represent a person in the same or
a substantially related matter in which a firm with which the
lawyer formerly was associated had previously represented a
client:

(1) whose interests are materially adverse to that person:
and

(2) about whom the lawyer had acquired information
protected by ERs 1.6 and 1.9(c) that is material to the
matter:

unless the former client gives informed consent, confirmed in
writing.
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And see also: ER 1.10.  Imputation of Conflicts of Interest: General Rule

(a) While lawyers are associated in a firm, none of them shall
knowingly represent a client when any one of them practicing
alone would be prohibited from doing so by ERs 1.7 or 1.9, unless
the prohibition is based on a personal interest of the prohibited
lawyer and does not present a significant risk of materially limiting
the representation of the client by the remaining lawyers in the
firm.

As a result, the ACLU is required to immediately withdraw from Melendres v. Arpaio, a
case that is already concluded on the merits as of October 2013, but which was continued and is
ongoing as contempt proceedings. The ACLU must further take whatever action is required to
mitigate the damage already done.

In my entire career as an attorney, as the founder of the legal ethics groups Judicial
Watch and Freedom Watch, | have never seen a violation of professional ethics and the fiduciary
duty between attorney and client of this magnitude and scope. The ACLU and its attorneys must
immediately withdraw from representation in the case and immediately notify Judge G. Murray
Snow and appropriate local, state and federal authorities of its unethical and illegal actions.

020 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W., Suite 345
Washington, D.C. 20006
(310) 595-0800
leklayman@gmail.com

cc: Mr. Dennis Montgomery
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AMERICAN CIVIL LIBERTIES UNION

Via Facsimile and U.S. Mail

June 25, 2015

Larry Klayman
Freedom Watch, Inc.
2020 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W.
Suite 345
b romasion™™*  Washington, DC 20006
CALIFORNIA QFFICE Fax: (310) 275-4963
39 DRUMM STREETY

SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94111
1/£15.343.0796 Dear Mr. Klayman:
F/415.395.0960
CWANGQACLY,0REG 5 R s
T am in receipt of your letter of June 22, 2015 and am responding on

NEW YORK ofFICE behalf of the American Civil Liberties Union Foundation and the ACLU

125 RROAD STYREET, 1897TH FL. = N u . q q
NEw vork, NY 10004-2¢00  Foundation of Arizona. We disagree with the factual and legal claims in your

WWW.ACLU.ORG letter and see no reason to take any further action.

Sincerely,

Cecillia Wang

cc! Daniel Pochoda
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